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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

ROMIO GORGIS individually and 
on behalf of all others similarly 
situated, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 
 v. 
 
HYPER NETWORK SOLUTIONS 
OF FLORIDA, LLC, 
 
  Defendant. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Case No.  
 
 
CLASS ACTION 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR: 

1. VIOLATION OF CAL. CIV. CODE 
§§1750, et seq.; 

2. VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & 
PROF. CODE §§17200, et seq.; and 

3. BREACH OF EXPRESS 
WARRANTY 

 
 
 
 
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
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Plaintiff Romio Gorgis (“Plaintiff”) brings this class action complaint 

against defendant Hyper Network Solutions of Florida, LLC (“Hyper Network” 

or “Defendant”), individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, 

through the undersigned attorneys, and complaints and alleges upon personal 

knowledge as to his own acts and experiences, and upon information and belief 

based upon the investigation of counsel as to the remaining allegations, alleges as 

follows: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This is a consumer protection class action arising out of Defendant’s 

false advertising its Healthy Natural Systems Garcinia Cambogia Extract product 

(the “Product”). See Product photos infra. Throughout its marketing and 

advertising, including on the Product’s packaging and labeling, Defendant claims 

the Product provides significant diet and weight loss benefits. Defendant asserts 

that the ingredient Garcinia Cambogia extract provides these significant health 

benefits. In truth, the Product is ineffective, and Defendant’s advertising claims 

are false, misleading, and reasonably likely to deceive the public. 

2. Defendant manufactures, advertises, markets, sells, and distributes 

the Product throughout the country. 

3. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of himself and other similarly 

situated individuals who purchased the Product to halt the dissemination of this 

false, misleading and deceptive advertising message, correct the false and 

misleading perception it has created in the minds of consumers, and obtain 

redress for those who have purchased the Products. Based on violations of state 

unfair competition and warranty laws Plaintiff seeks injunctive and monetary 

relief for those who have purchased the Products. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

Case 3:16-cv-01725-L-WVG   Document 1   Filed 07/01/16   Page 2 of 22



 

 2  
00104931 CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

B
L

O
O

D
 H

U
R

S
T

 &
 O

’R
E

A
R

D
O

N
, L

L
P

 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331 and 28 U.S.C. §1332(d). The matter in controversy, 

exclusive of interest and costs, exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000 and is a 

class action in which there are in excess of 100 class members and many 

members of the Class are citizens of a state different from Defendant. 

5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because it 

regularly conducts business in this District. Defendant has marketed, promoted, 

distributed, and sold the Product in California and Defendant has sufficient 

minimum contacts with this State and/or sufficiently avails itself of the markets 

in this State through its promotion, sales, distribution and marketing within this 

State to render the exercise of jurisdiction by this Court permissible. 

6. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to: (1) 28 U.S.C. 

§1391(b)(2) in that a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to 

Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this District; and (2) 28 U.S.C. §1391(b)(3) in that 

Defendant is subject to personal jurisdiction in this District. 

PARTIES 

7. Plaintiff Romio Gorgis is a resident of El Cajon, California. He 

purchased the Product for his own use during the four years preceding the filing 

of this Complaint. Most recently, Plaintiff Gorgis purchased a 60-count bottle of 

the Product at GNC on April 20, 2016 for $19.99. Prior to purchasing the Product, 

Mr. Gorgis was exposed to and saw Defendant’s representations by reading the 

label of the Product. In reliance on the diet and weight loss health benefit 

representations on the Product’s label, Plaintiff Gorgis purchased the Product. By 

purchasing the falsely advertised Product, Plaintiff Gorgis suffered injury-in-fact 

and lost money. Plaintiff Gorgis is not claiming physical harm or seeking the 

recovery of personal injury damages. 
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8. Hyper Network Solutions of Florida, LLC (“Hyper Network” or 

Defendant”) is a limited liability company licensed in the State of Florida, with a 

principle place of business at 11780 US Highway One, Suite 400, N. Palm Beach 

Gardens, Florida 33408. Hyper Network markets, distributes and sells the 

Product throughout the United States. Hyper Network, which merged with Hyper 

Network Solutions, LLC on or about May 6, 2014, was formerly known as 

Healthy Natural Systems, LLC. Kainos Capital LP, a private equity firm, owns 

Hyper Network. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

9. Defendant markets, distributes and sells the Product throughout the 

United States. 

10. The Product is available in (1) bottles containing tablets, which 

retail for approximately $19.99 for a 60-count bottle, and (2) packets containing 

soft chews, which retail for approximately $29.99 for a 30-count packet. 

11. According to Defendant, and as stated on the Product’s packaging, 

the Product contains 500 mg Garcinia Cambogia extract (50% hydroxycitric acid 

(250 mg)) per serving. 

12. Garcinia Cambogia, also known as malabar tamarind, is a tropical 

tree fruit that contains hydroxycitric acid or HCA. 

13. Defendant, throughout its advertisements, including on the 

Product’s packaging and labeling, has consistently conveyed the message to 

consumers throughout the United States that the Product, with its Garcinia 

Cambogia main active ingredient, provides significant fat burning, weight loss, 

and appetite suppression health benefits. 

14. Despite Defendant’s representations, Garcinia Cambogia is not 

effective in providing the represented weight loss benefits. 

15. Under information and belief, Defendant had access, but knowingly 

and/or recklessly ignored all competent and reliable scientific evidence regarding 
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the Product’s main active ingredient Garcinia Cambogia. 

Defendant’s False and Misleading Labeling and 

Marketing Claims Regarding the Product 

16. Defendant, through its advertisements including on the Product’s 

packaging and labeling, has consistently conveyed the message to consumers 

throughout the United States that the Product provides weight loss, metabolism, 

and appetite suppression health benefits, simply by consuming the Product. 

17. Defendant states on the Product’s labeling and marketing that the 

Product “SUPPORTS APPETITE CONTROL”, “METABOLIZES FAT”, and 

“Promotes Weight Loss”. 

18. The Product’s labeling appears as follows: 

Product’s Tablet Labeling 
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Product’s Soft Chews Labeling 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19. Defendant’s marketing representations repeat and reinforce the 

claims made on the labeling for the Product, including on its websites, 

healthydelights.com, InchByInch.com and hnsglobal.com. These websites are 
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available to the general public and Defendant’s labeling for the Product promotes 

the InbyInch.com website. On its websites, Defendant makes the following 

similar claims: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See www.inchbyinch.com/garcenia-combogia/ (last visited June 22, 2016). 

/// 

/// 

SUPPORTS APPETITE CONTROL 
Even in the worst environments! 

----------
Garcenia Cambogia 
Garc nla Ca bOgla a so know as Maabar Tamar nd. conta ns 

f- ydroxycltr c ACid (HCAI, which can help s ppo ealthy we ght 

OSS" Gamn a IS a p ant native to Ina a, Southeast ASia a d 

Po ynesla Its fru ts have een eaten b laca populat ons or 

centuries It has also been used to glve favor to culinary d shes. 

Eacn tablet dehvers 500 mg 0; Garc nla Cambogla 

It helps to boosts the leve 0 serotonn ,nslde the bra n wh ch 

he ps 0 contro carbohyorate cravings In the bOdy Garcinia 

Cambogia works by stopo ng t e converSion of Sugar and starch 

nto Fats Garcinia Cambogia sops the Increase n cholesterol 

evel and he ps to red uce tne tr gI 'cerides In the body. t fu her 

Supports Appet te Control" 

Metabo zes Fat-

Enhances the energy leve n the 

bOdy" 

relps contro cho esterol evel" 

relps to boost Immune system and 

he ps to avo d nfectlons encase 

0' co d and lu" 

he ps to ncrease Ther 0 genesIs process wh ch s burning of extra fat f rom the body 
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See www.hnsglobal.com (last visited June 30, 2016); see also 

www.healthydelights.com/garcinia-cambogia/ (same) (last visited June 30, 

2016). 

20. GNC is the major retailer of the Product. Defendant promotes that 

the Product is available at GNC. GNC’s website
1
 makes similar false and 

deceptive claims regarding the weight loss benefits of the Product, including 

picturing the Product’s labeling and making statements such as “Natural-Weight 

Loss Super Fruit.” 

/// 

/// 

/// 

                                           
1
 http://www.gnc.com/Healthy-Natural-Systems-Garcinia-Cambogia-

Extract/product.jsp?productId=19152796 (last visited June 29, 2016). 
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Why Defendant’s Labeling and Marketing Claims are 

False and Misleading 

21. Despite Defendant’s representations, Garcinia Cambogia (which 

contains hydroxycitric acid) is not effective in providing the represented appetite, 

metabolism and weight loss health benefits. 

22. Defendant’s labeling and marketing claims regarding the Product 

are predicated on the purported ability of hydroxycitric acid, the active ingredient 

in the herbal compound Garcinia Cambogia, to induce satiety (a feeling of 

fullness) by impacting an enzyme playing a role in fatty acid oxidation. 

23. Since hydroxycitric acid reportedly promotes weight loss, in part, 

through suppression of hunger, a double-blind, placebo-controlled study was 

conducted on men and women to determine the effects of hydroxycitric acid on 

appetitive variables. The group consuming hydroxycitric acid did not exhibit 

better dietary compliance or significant correlations between appetitive variables 

and energy intake or weight change. According to the study authors, the results 

were “unequivocal”: 

The present data on appetitive indices are unequivocal. No 
significant treatment effects were observed on mean, peak or nadir 
hunger ratings, mean ratings of desire to eat, prospective 
consumption, [or] fullness… 

Thus, this 2000 study demonstrates the lack of a satiety (appetite control) or 

weight change effect of hydroxycitric acid.
2
 

24. A 2001 double-blind, placebo-controlled, randomized study was 

published examining  consumption of 500 mg hydroxycitric acid or placebo in 

normal to moderately obese males. The 2001 study concluded that 

supplementation with 500 mg hydroxycitric acid does not result in increased 

satiety, or impact other appetite parameters or body weight loss compared to 

                                           
2
 Mattes R, Bormann L. Effects of (-)-hydroxycitric acid on appetitive 

variables. Physiol Behav 2000, 71:87-94. 
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placebo.
3
 

25. A similar study was performed in order to assess the effects of two 

weeks supplementation with hydroxycitric acid alone or combined with medium-

chain triglycerides on satiety and energy intake. Two weeks of supplementation 

with hydroxycitric acid alone or combined with medium chain triglycerides did 

not result in increased satiety or decreased energy intake compared to placebo in 

subjects losing bodyweight.
4
 

26. In 1998, results were published from a randomized controlled trial 

conducted to evaluate the efficacy of Garcinia Cambogia for body weight and fat 

mass loss in overweight men and women. The 1998 study concluded Garcinia 

Cambogia is no more effective than a placebo pill for producing weight loss and 

fat mass loss.
5
 

27. A 1999 double-blind, placebo-controlled and randomized study was 

performed with the objective of determining the effect of hydroxycitric acid on 

marker substrates of altered metabolism, as well as on respiratory quotient (RQ) 

and energy expenditure (EE) in humans, following an overnight fast and during a 

bout of exercise. The hypothesis was that supplementation with hydroxycitric 

acid would affect metabolism and induce body weight loss primarily through an 

increase in fat oxidation or “accelerated fat burning,” as reflected by an increase 

in energy expenditure (“EE”) and/or a decrease in respiratory quotient (“RQ”). In 

                                           
3
 Kovacs E, Westerterp-Plantenga M, Saris W. The effects of 2-week 

ingestion of (--)-hydroxycitrate and (--)-hydroxycitrate combined with medium-
chain triglycerides on satiety, fat oxidation, energy expenditure and body weight. 
Int J Obes Relat Metab Disord 2001a, 25:1087-94. 
4
 Kovacs E, Westerterp-Plantenga M, de Vries M, Brouns F, Saris W. 

Effects of 2-week ingestion of (-)-hydroxycitrate and (-)-hydroxycitrate 
combined with medium-chain triglycerides on satiety and food intake. Physiol 
Behav 2001b, 74:543-9. 
5
 Heymsfield S, Allison D, Basselli J, Pietrobelli A, Greenfield D, Nunez C. 

Garcinia Cambogia (Hydroxycitric Acid) as a potential antiobestiy agent. J Am 
Med Assoc. 1998, 280: 1596-1600. 
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a fasted state and following three days of hydroxycitric acid treatment, RQ was 

not significantly lowered during rest nor during exercise compared with the 

placebo treatment. Consumption of hydroxycitric acid also did not affect EE, 

either during rest or during moderately intense exercise. Furthermore, blood 

substrates associated with fat oxidation and metabolism were not significantly 

different between those consuming hydroxycitric acid versus placebo under the 

fasting conditions of this study. The results demonstrate that hydroxycitric acid 

does not alter metabolism or otherwise promote weight loss.
6
 

28. A study was conducted to assess the effects of hydroxycitric acid 

consumption on metabolism at rest and during exercise in humans. The results, 

published in 2000, demonstrate that hydroxycitric acid, even when provided in 

large quantities, does not increase total fat oxidation.
7
 

29. Similarly, Kim et al. 2011, a randomized, double-blind placebo-

controlled study, concluded that Garcinia Cambogia consumption failed to 

promote any clinically significant weight-loss or provide any relevant change in 

body fat percentage.
8
 

30. Defendant’s deceptive statements also violate the Food, Drug, and 

Cosmetic Act (“FDCA”), 21 U.S.C. §343(a)(1), which deems food (including 

nutritional supplements) misbranded when the label contains a statement that is 

“false or misleading in any particular.” 

                                           
6
 Kriketos A, Thompson H, Greene H, Hill J. (-)-Hydroxycitric acid does 

not affect energy expenditure and substrate oxidation in adult males in a post-
absorptive state. Int J Obes Relat Metab Disord 1999, 23:867-73. 
7
 van Loon L, van Rooijen J, Niesen B, Verhagen H, Saris W, 

Wagenmakers A. Effects of acute (-)-hydroxycitrate supplementation on 
substrate metabolism at rest and during exercise in humans. Am J Clin Nutr 
2000, 72:1445-50. 
8
 Kim, JE, et. al. Does Glycine max leaves or Garcinia Cambogia promote 

weight-loss or lower plasma cholesterol in overweight individuals: a randomized 
control trial. Nutr J. 2011 Sep 21;10:94. 
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31. The Sherman Law explicitly incorporates by reference “[a]ll food 

labeling regulations and any amendments to those regulations adopted pursuant 

to the FDCA,” as the food labeling regulations of California Cal. Health & Saf. 

Code, §110100, subd. (a). 

32. Defendant’s claims are misleading to consumers in violation of 

21 U.S.C. §343, which states, “A food shall be deemed to be misbranded – False 

or misleading label [i]f its labeling is false or misleading in any particular.” 

33. The introduction of misbranded food into interstate commerce is 

prohibited under the FDCA and California’s Sherman Law cited in this 

Complaint. 

34. Plaintiff and the other Class Members have been and will continue 

to be deceived or misled by Defendant’s false and deceptive weight loss benefit 

representations. Plaintiff purchased the Product during the Class period and in 

doing so, read and considered the Product’s label and based his decision to 

purchase the Product on the weight loss health benefit representations on the 

Product packaging. Defendant’s weight loss health benefit representations and 

omissions were a material factor in influencing Plaintiff’s decision to purchase 

the Product. 

35. The only purpose for purchasing the Product is to obtain the 

represented weight loss health benefits. Plaintiff and Class Members would not 

have purchased the Product had they known the truth about Defendant’s 

misrepresentations and omissions at the time they purchased the Product. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

36. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule 

of Civil Procedure 23 on behalf the following Class: 

All persons who, within four (4) years of the filing of this 
Complaint, purchased the Product. 

/// 
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Excluded from the Class is the Defendant, its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, 

officers, and directors; those who purchased the Product for the purpose of 

resale; all persons who make a timely election to be excluded from the Class; the 

judge to whom this case is assigned and any immediate family members thereof; 

and those who assert claims for personal injury. 

37. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at 

this time, and will be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff is 

informed and believes that there are tens of thousands of members in the 

proposed Class. The number of individuals who comprise the Class is so 

numerous that joinder of all such persons is impracticable and the disposition of 

their claims in a class action, rather than in individual actions, will benefit both 

the parties and the courts. 

38. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the other members of 

the Class. All members of the Class have been and/or continue to be similarly 

affected by Defendant’s wrongful conduct as complained of herein, in violation 

of federal and state law. Plaintiff is unaware of any interests that conflict with or 

are antagonistic to the interests of the Class. 

39. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the Class members’ 

interests and have retained counsel competent and experienced in consumer class 

action lawsuits and complex litigation. Plaintiff and his counsel have the 

necessary financial resources to adequately and vigorously litigate this class 

action, and Plaintiff is aware of their duties and responsibilities to the Class. 

40. Defendant has acted with respect to the Class in a manner generally 

applicable to each Class member. Common questions of law and fact exist as to 

all Class members and predominate over any questions wholly affecting 

individual Class members. There is a well-defined community of interest in the 

questions of law and fact involved in the action, which affects all Class members. 

Among the questions of law and fact common to the Class are: 
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a) Whether the representations discussed herein that Defendant 
made about its Product are false, deceptive, or misleading; 

b) Whether Defendant’s conduct violates public policy; 

c) Whether Defendant engaged in false or misleading 
advertising; 

d) Whether Defendant’s conduct constitutes violations of the 
laws asserted herein; 

e) Whether Plaintiff and the other Class Members have been 
injured and the proper measure of their losses as a result of 
those injuries; and 

f) Whether Plaintiff and the other Class Members are entitled to 
injunctive, declaratory or other equitable relief. 

41. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair 

and efficient adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is 

impracticable. Furthermore, as the damages suffered by individual Class 

members may be relatively small, the expense and burden of individual litigation 

make it virtually impossible for Class members to individually redress the 

wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in managing this action as a 

class action. 

42. Defendant has acted on grounds generally applicable to the entire 

Class with respect to the matters complained of herein, thereby making 

appropriate the relief sought herein with respect to the Class as a whole. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

FIRST COUNT 

Violation of California’s Consumers Legal Remedies Act 
Cal. Civil Code §§1750, et seq. 

43. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference the allegations contained 

in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

44. Defendant’s Product is a “good” as defined by California Civil Code 

§1761(a). 

Case 3:16-cv-01725-L-WVG   Document 1   Filed 07/01/16   Page 14 of 22



 

 14  
00104931 CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

B
L

O
O

D
 H

U
R

S
T

 &
 O

’R
E

A
R

D
O

N
, L

L
P

 

45. Defendant is a “person” as defined by California Civil Code 

§1761(c). 

46. Plaintiff and the Class members are “consumers” within the 

meaning of California Civil Code §1761(d) because they purchased Defendant’s 

Product for personal, family or household use. 

47. The sale of Defendant’s Product to Plaintiff and Class members is 

“transaction” as defined by California Civil Code §1761(e). 

48. Defendant violated and continues to violate the Act by engaging in 

the following practices proscribed by California Civil Code §1770(a) in 

transactions with Plaintiff and the Class which were intended to result in, and did 

result in, the sale of its Product: 

(5) Representing that [the Product has] . . . approval, characteristics, . . . 

uses [and] benefits . . . which [it does] not have . . . . 

* * * 

(7) Representing that [the Product is] of a particular standard, quality or 

grade . . . if [it is] of another. 

* * * 

(9) Advertising goods . . . with intent not to sell them as advertised. 

* * * 

(16) Representing that [the Product has] been supplied in   

  accordance with a previous representation when [it has] not. 

49. Defendant violated the CLRA by representing and failing to 

disclose material facts on its Product’s labeling and associated advertising, as 

described above, when it knew, or should have known, that the representations 

were false and misleading and that the omissions were of material facts they 

were obligated to disclose. 

50. As a result of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiff and Class members 

were harmed and suffered actual damages as a result of Defendant’s unfair 
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competition and deceptive acts and practices. Had Defendant disclosed the true 

nature or not falsely represented its Product, Plaintiff and the Class members 

would not have purchased Defendant’s Product. 

51. Additionally, misbranded food products cannot legally be 

manufactured, held, advertised, distributed or sold. Thus, misbranded dietary 

supplements have no economic value and are worthless as a matter of law, and 

purchasers of misbranded dietary supplements are entitled to a refund of the 

purchase price of the misbranded dietary supplements. 

52. Pursuant to California Civil Code §1782(d), Plaintiff, individually 

and on behalf of the other members of the Class, seeks a Court order enjoining 

the above-described wrongful acts and practices of Defendant and for restitution 

and disgorgement. 

53. Pursuant to §1782 of the Act, Plaintiff notified Defendant in writing 

by certified mail of the particular violations of §1770 of the Act and demanded 

that Defendant rectify the problems associated with the actions detailed above 

and give notice to all affected consumers of Defendant’s intent to so act. A copy 

of the letter is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

54. If Defendant fails to rectify or agree to rectify the problems 

associated with the actions detailed above and give notice to all affected 

consumers within 30 days of the date of written notice pursuant to §1782 of the 

CLRA, Plaintiff will amend this complaint to add claims for actual, punitive and 

statutory damages, as appropriate. 

55. Defendant’s conduct is fraudulent, wanton, and malicious. 

56. Pursuant to §1780(d) of the CLRA, attached hereto as Exhibit B is 

the affidavit showing that this action has been commenced in the proper forum. 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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SECOND COUNT 

Violation of California’s Unfair Competition Law 
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§17200, et seq. 

57. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference the allegations contained 

in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

58. As alleged herein, Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and lost 

money or property as a result of Defendant’s conduct because he purchased 

Defendant’s falsely advertised Product in reliance on the false advertisements. 

59. The Unfair Competition Law, Business & Professions Code §17200, 

et seq. (“UCL”), and similar laws in other states, prohibits any “unlawful,” 

“fraudulent” or “unfair” business act or practice and any false or misleading 

advertising. 

60. In the course of conducting business, Defendant committed 

unlawful business practices by, among other things, making the representations 

(which also constitutes advertising within the meaning of §17200) and omissions 

of material facts, as set forth more fully herein, and violating Civil Code §§1572, 

1573, 1709, 1711, 1770(a)(5), (7), (9) and (16), Business & Professions Code 

§§17200, et seq., 17500, et seq., Health & Safety Code §110660, and the 

common law. 

61. Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the other Class members, 

reserves the right to allege other violations of law, which constitute other 

unlawful business acts or practices. Such conduct is ongoing and continues to 

this date. 

62. In the course of conducting business, Defendant committed “unfair” 

business practices by, among other things, making the representations (which 

also constitute advertising within the meaning of §17200) and omissions of 

material facts regarding the Product in its advertising campaign, including on the 

Product’s labeling, as set forth more fully herein. There is no societal benefit 
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from false advertising – only harm. Plaintiff and the other Class members paid 

for a valueless product that does not confer the benefits it promises. While 

Plaintiff and the other Class members were harmed, Defendant was unjustly 

enriched by its false misrepresentations and omissions. As a result, Defendant’s 

conduct is “unfair,” as it offended an established public policy. Further, 

Defendant engaged in immoral, unethical, oppressive, and unscrupulous 

activities that are substantially injurious to consumers. 

63. Further, as set forth in this Complaint, Plaintiff alleges violations of 

consumer protection, unfair competition, and truth in advertising laws in 

California and other states, resulting in harm to consumers. Defendant’s acts and 

omissions also violate and offend the public policy against engaging in false and 

misleading advertising, unfair competition, and deceptive conduct towards 

consumers. This conduct constitutes violations of the unfair prong of Business & 

Professions Code §17200, et seq. 

64. There were reasonably available alternatives to further Defendant’s 

legitimate business interests, other than the conduct described herein. Business & 

Professions Code §17200, et seq., also prohibits any “fraudulent business act or 

practice.” In the course of conducting business, Defendant committed 

“fraudulent business act or practices” by, among other things, making the 

representations (which also constitute advertising within the meaning of §17200) 

and omissions of material facts regarding the Product in its advertising 

campaign, including on the Product’s labeling, as set forth more fully herein. 

Defendant made the misrepresentations and omissions regarding the efficacy of 

its Product, among other ways, by misrepresenting on the labeling for each and 

every Product that the Product is effective when taken as directed, when, in fact, 

the representations are false and deceptive, and the Product does not confer the 

promised health benefits. 
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65. Defendant’s actions, claims, omissions, and misleading statements, 

as more fully set forth above, were also false, misleading and/or likely to deceive 

the consuming public within the meaning of Business & Professions Code 

§17200, et seq. 

66. Plaintiff and the other members of the Class have in fact been 

deceived as a result of their reliance on Defendant’s material representations and 

omissions, which are described above. This reliance has caused harm to Plaintiff 

and the other members of the Class, each of whom purchased Defendant’s 

Product. Plaintiff and the other Class members have suffered injury in fact and 

lost money as a result of purchasing the Product and Defendant’s unlawful, 

unfair, and fraudulent practices. 

67. Defendant knew, or should have known, that its material 

representations and omissions would be likely to deceive the consuming public 

and result in consumers purchasing the Product and, indeed, intended to deceive 

consumers. 

68. As a result of its deception, Defendant has been able to reap unjust 

revenue and profit. 

69. Unless restrained and enjoined, Defendant will continue to engage 

in the above-described conduct. Accordingly, injunctive relief is appropriate. 

70. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself, all others similarly situated, and the 

general public, seeks restitution from Defendant of all money obtained from 

Plaintiff and the other members of the Class collected as a result of unfair 

competition, an injunction prohibiting Defendant from continuing such practices, 

corrective advertising, and all other relief this Court deems appropriate, 

consistent with Business & Professions Code §17203. 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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THIRD COUNT 

Breach of Express Warranty 

71. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference the allegations contained 

in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

72. Plaintiff and each member of the Class formed a contract with 

Defendant at the time Plaintiff and the other members of the Class purchased the 

Product. The terms of that contract include the promises and affirmations of fact 

made by Defendant on the packaging of the Product concerning its alleged 

efficacy. 

73. The Product’s packaging constitute express warranties, became part 

of the basis of the bargain, and are part of a standardized contract between 

Plaintiff and the members of the Class on the one hand, and Defendant on the 

other. 

74. All conditions precedent to Defendant's liability under this contract 

have been performed by Plaintiff and the Class. 

75. Defendant breached the terms of this contract, including the express 

warranties, with Plaintiff and the Class by not providing the Product that could 

provide the promised benefits described above and which was the only reason 

Plaintiff and Class members purchased the Product, i.e., that the Product controls 

appetite, metabolizes fat, and promotes weight loss. 

76. As a result of Defendant’s breach of its contract, Plaintiff and the 

Class have been damaged in the amount of the purchase price of the Product. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff and the Class pray for a judgment: 

A. Certifying the Class as requested herein, and appointing Plaintiff as 

representative for the Class, and appointing Plaintiff’s counsel as Class counsel; 

B. Directing that Defendant bear the costs of any notice sent to the 

Class; 
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C. Awarding Plaintiff and the members of the Class damages; 

D. Awarding restitution and disgorgement of Defendants’ revenues to 

Plaintiff and the proposed Class members; 

E. Awarding declaratory and injunctive relief as permitted by law or 

equity, including enjoining Defendants from continuing the unlawful practices as 

set forth herein, and directing Defendants to identify, with court supervision, 

victims of their conduct and pay them restitution and disgorgement of all monies 

acquired by Defendants by means of any act or practice declared by this Court to 

be wrongful; 

F. Awarding Plaintiffs and the members of the Class pre- and post-

judgment interest; 

G. Ordering Defendant to engage in a corrective advertising campaign; 

G. Awarding attorneys’ fees and costs of suit; and 

H. Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and 

proper. 

JURY TRIAL DEMAND 

 Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable. 

 

Dated: July 1, 2016 BLOOD HURST & O’REARDON, LLP 
TIMOTHY G. BLOOD (149343) 
THOMAS J. O’REARDON II (247952) 
 
 
By:        s/  Timothy G. Blood 

 TIMOTHY G. BLOOD 
 

 701 B Street, Suite 1700 
San Diego, CA  92101 
Tel: 619/338-1100 
619/338-1101 (fax) 
tblood@bholaw.com 
toreardon@bholaw.com 
 

 KOHN, SWIFT & GRAF, P.C. 
JONATHAN N. SHUB (CSB 237708) 
One South Broad Street, Suite 2100 
Philadelphia, PA  19107 
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Tel: 215/238-1700 
jshub@kohnswift.com 
 

 BARBAT, MANSOUR 
& SUCIU PLLC 
NICK SUCIU III (pro hac vice 
forthcoming) 
1644 Bracken Road 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302 
Tel: 313/303-3472 
nicksuciu@bmslawyers.com 
 

 Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Class 
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July 1,2016 

Hyper Network Solutions of Florida, LLC 
Attn: Chief Executive Officer, Other 
Corporate Officer or Managing Agent 
11780 US Highway One, Suite 400 
N. Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33408 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL (RETURN RECEIPT) 
(RECEIPT NO. 7014 0150 0000 6250 7239) 

Re: Violation of the California Consumer Legal Remedies Act 
(Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, et seq.) 

Dear Chief Executive Officer, Other Corporate Officer or Managing Agent: 

We represent Romio Gorgis ("Plaintiff' or "Mr. Gorgis") and all other consumers 
similarly situated in an action against Hyper Network Solutions of Florida, LLC ("Defendant"). 
You are hereby notified that you have violated and continue to violate provisions of the California 
Consumer Legal Remedies Act, California Civil Code sections 1750, et seq. (the "CLRA"), with 
respect to your misrepresentations in the marketing, advertising, distribution and sale of your 
product called Healthy Natural Systems Garcinia Cambogia (the "Product"). As such, Plaintiff 
demands that Defendant redress the violations of the Consumer Legal Remedies Act ("CLRA"), 
California Civil Code §§ 1750, et seq. , within thirty (30) days after receipt of this letter. 

This action arises out of, inter alia, misrepresentations you made in the marketing, 
advertising, distribution and sale of your Product. This includes your promotions and 
advertisements that the Product actually bums fat, controls the user's weight and suppresses 
appetite, which claims are false, deceptive and misleading, including because properly conducted 
studies demonstrate that the Product and its ingredient Garcinia Cambogia extract is ineffective. 
The full claims, including the facts and circumstances surrounding these claims are detailed in the 
Class Action Complaint, a copy of which is attached and incorporated by this reference. 

These practices constitute violations of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act, California 
Civil Code § 1750, et seq. Specifically, Defendant's practices violate California Civil Code 
§ 1770(a) under, inter alia, the following subdivisions: 

(5) Representing that goods or services have ... approval, characteristics, ... 
uses [or] benefits . . . which they do not have ... . 

* * * 
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(7) Representing that goods or services are of a particular standard, quality or 
grade .. . if they are of another. 

* * * 
(9) Advertising goods or services with intent not to sell them as adveliised. 

* * * 
(16) Representing that the subject of a transaction has been supplied in 

accordance with a previous representation when it has not. 

As detailed in the attached Complaint, Defendant' s practices also violate Califomia Business 
and Professions Code § 17200, et seq. , and constitute a breach of warranty. 

Section 1782 of the California Civil Code provides that the party receiving notice under 
this section is required to "correct, repair, replace or otherwise rectify" the goods alleged to be 
in violation within thirty (30) days after receipt of this letter, and must ensure that appropriate 
notice of this remedial action is delivered to all consumers who purchased the Hyper Network 
Solutions of Florida, LLC Product. Accordingly, we demand that Defendant immediately 
cease and desist from engaging in the violations of the CLRA enumerated in this letter. 

Moreover, as representative of a proposed Class of similarly situated purchasers of the 
Hyper Network Solutions of Florida, LLC Product, please be advised that Mr. Gorgis cannot 
and will not accept a refund for the purchased Product, unless the relief offered to him is also 
offered to every other member of the Class in accordance with the CLRA. Of course, this would 
be subject to our review, as class counsel, of appropriate financial infOlmation detailing all sales 
made to consumers during the Class Period. 

While the Complaint constitutes sufficient notice of the claims asselied, pursuant to 
California Civil Code § 1782 and California Commercial Code §2607, we hereby demand on 
behalf of our client and all others similarly situated that Defendant immediately correct and 
rectify these violations by ceasing the misleading marketing campaign, ceasing dissemination of 
false and misleading information as described in the enclosed Complaint, and initiating a 
corrective advertising campaign to re-educate consumers regarding the truth of the Product at 
issue. In addition, Defendant must offer to refund the purchase price to all consumer purchasers 
of the Product, plus provide reimbursement for interest, costs, and fees. 
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If Defendant fails to correct these problems within thirty (30) days ofreceipt of this letter, 
our client will amend his class action complaint and seek actual and punitive damages against 
Defendant for violations of the CLRA on behalf of himself and the Class seeking monetary 
damages and equitable relief. Our client's complaint will state a claim against Hyper Network 
Solutions of Florida, LLC for damages under the CLRA and will be filed on behalf of our client 
and all other similarly situated consumers who purchased the Product from Defendant. 

We await your response. 

Sincerely, 

TGB:jk 

Enclosure 
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BLOOD HURST & O’REARDON, LLP 
TIMOTHY G. BLOOD (149343) 
THOMAS J. O’REARDON II (247952) 
701 B Street, Suite 1700 
San Diego, CA  92101 
Tel: 619/338-1100 
619/338-1101 (fax) 
tblood@bholaw.com 
toreardon@bholaw.com 
 
KOHN, SWIFT & GRAF, P.C. 
JONATHAN N. SHUB (CSB 237708) 
One South Broad Street, Suite 2100 
Philadelphia, PA  19107 
Tel: 215/238-1700 
jshub@kohnswift.com 
 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Class  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BARBAT, MANSOUR 
& SUCIU PLLC 
NICK SUCIU III 
     (pro hac vice forthcoming) 
1644 Bracken Road 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302 
Tel: 313/303-3472 
nicksuciu@bmslawyers.com 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

ROMIO GORGIS individually and 
on behalf of all others similarly 
situated,, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 
 v. 
 
HYPER NETWORK SOLUTIONS 
OF FLORIDA, LLC,, 
 
  Defendant. 
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AFFIDAVIT OF TIMOTHY G. BLOOD 
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CODE §1780(d)] 
 
 
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
 

 

  

Case 3:16-cv-01725-L-WVG   Document 1-3   Filed 07/01/16   Page 2 of 3



 

 1  
00104309 AFFIDAVIT OF TIMOTHY G. BLOOD PURSUANT TO CAL. CIV. CODE §1780(d) 

 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

B
L

O
O

D
 H

U
R

S
T

 &
 O

’R
E

A
R

D
O

N
, L

L
P

 

I, TIMOTHY G. BLOOD, declare as follows: 

 1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice before all of the courts of 

the State of California. I am the managing partner of the law firm of Blood Hurst 

& O’Reardon LLP, one of the counsel of record for Plaintiff in the above-entitled 

action. 

 2. Plaintiff Romio Gorgis is a resident of San Diego County. Further, 

Defendant Hyper Network Solutions of Florida, LLC has done and is doing 

business in San Diego County. Such business includes the marketing and 

distribution of its Healthy Natural Systems Garcinia Cambogia product. 

 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 

that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on July 1, 2016, at San Diego, 

California. 

 

 s/  Timothy G. Blood 
 TIMOTHY G. BLOOD 
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